
 

                                                           
    

 
 
 

Licensing/Gambling Hearing 
 
 

To: Councillors Hook, Mason and Warters 
 

Date: Monday, 25 January 2021 
 

Time: 10.00 am 
 

Venue: Remote Meeting 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Chair   

 To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting. 
 
2. Introductions   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   

 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 

 
4. Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider excluding the Press and Public during the sub-
 committee’s deliberations and decision-making at the end of the 
 hearing, on the grounds that the public interest in excluding the 
 public outweighs the public interest in that part of the meeting 
 taking place in public, under Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 
 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
5. Minutes   

 To approve the minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on 9 
 November 2020. 
 



 

6. The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application for a 
Premises Licence by Mr Man Wei Leung  in respect of 
Haizhonglao Hot Pot & BBQ, 12 George Hudson Street, York, 
YO1 6LP (CYC-067498) 

 
   
 
 Democratic Services Officer: 
 Name: Fiona Young   
 Contact Details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 552030 

 Email  - fiona.young@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 For more information about any of the following, please contact 
 the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this 
 meeting: 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats. 
 
 Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 

  
 
 

mailto:fiona.young@york.gov.uk


LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB – COMMITTEES 
PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE LICENSING HEARINGS 

 
Introduction 

1. During the coronavirus pandemic emergency period it will be 
necessary for licensing hearings to be dealt with remotely.  This 
procedure sets out how City of York Council will deal with such 
hearings.  This procedure must be considered in conjunction with the 
Council’s Delivery of Remote Meetings document which sets out how 
all meetings, including licensing hearings will be held in York. 

 

2. The procedure adopted at a licensing hearing is at the discretion of 
the Sub-Committee but will normally follow the pattern outlined 
below. 

 
3. The Council's hearings procedure is based on regulations made by 

the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. The procedure 
is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a 
fair hearing. The Sub-Committee has a duty to view all evidence 
presented before them impartially. The Sub-Committee is not bound 
by the formal rules of evidence. Nevertheless, Members must carry 
out their duty placing what weight they feel is appropriate given the 
nature of the evidence and the manner in which it was obtained, and 
communicated. 

 
4. The Council will provide a record of the hearing in a permanent and 

intelligible form and keep it for 6 years from the date of determination 
or disposal of any Appeal.  The Hearing will be recorded and the 
recording placed on the Council’s website. 

 

Preparation for the Remote Licensing Hearing 
 

5. The Sub-Committee will use the video-conferencing platform when 
the hearing is in public session.  Clear instructions will be provided to 
participants on how to join the remote hearing.  The Sub-Committee 
may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing if it considers it is 
in the public interest to do so. Should any part of the hearing need to 
be held in private session, a separate private online meeting will be 
convened by the Sub-Committee.  This video-conferencing platform 
will also be used for decision making in private. All paperwork 
relevant to the hearing will be published online on the Council’s 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



website, 5 working days before the remote hearing.  The documents 
will be produced in PDF format and will be paginated to permit ease 
of reference during the remote hearing.  Name and address details 
of those making representations will be made public. Telephone 
numbers, email addresses and signatures will be omitted.  

 

6. 5 working days before the remote hearing is due to take place, the 
Council will contact the parties with a list of issues they would like 
any party to specifically address them on or clarify at the hearing.  

 
7. If in light of the Council’s list of issues any party wishes to produce 

any further documentary evidence they should submit this to the 
Council by email three working days before the hearing.  

 
8. Any documentary evidence that is not submitted to the Council by 

email three working days before the hearing will not be admitted 
without the agreement of all parties. If it is essential to a party’s case 
that the material be admitted, then the Sub-Committee will consider 
adjourning the remote hearing to allow all parties a fair opportunity to 
consider it.  

 
9. Should any party wish to rely on any points of law, specific 

references in the s.182 Guidance, specific references in the 
Council’s Policy or any other external resources, these should be set 
down in an electronic document and submitted to the Council by 
email three working days before the hearing.  

 

The Remote Licensing Hearing 
 

10. The Applicant is permitted to speak at the remote hearing (see 
below). Ward Councillors, responsible Authorities and Representors 
are only permitted to speak if they have made written submissions 
during the consultation period.   Any party to a hearing may be 
assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.  

 

11. All parties will be given a fair hearing and each party will have the 
same amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee and 
question each other. Each party will have 15 minutes to address the 
Sub-Committee and call any witnesses and 5 minutes for questions. 

 

Page 2



12. However, where there are groups of individuals with a common 
interest, for example local residents making similar representations 
either for or against an application, consideration should be given to 
nominating a spokesperson.  Otherwise the Sub-Committee may 
impose a time limit for such representations where there is pressure 
on the Sub-Committee to hear numerous applications in a short 
period of time or for any other valid reason. 

 
13. If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will 

normally proceed but will consider their written representation. In 
considering written evidence in the absence of a Representor, 
appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person cannot be 
questioned by Members.  

 
14. The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information 

given or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not 
relevant to the application, representations, or notice, and the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. Duplication should be 
avoided. Comments must be confined to those points already made, 
although the parties may expand on their written submissions. The 
Sub-Committee will have read and familiarised themselves with all 
the written submissions and the issues prior to the hearing, and 
therefore do not require the points to be made at length. 

 
15. A Representor may not introduce any new ground or objection not 

referred to in their written submission. Additional representations 
which do not amount to an amplification of the original representation 
will not be considered by the Sub-Committee. 

 
16. Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave 

the hearing. However, if this occurs, that person will be entitled to 
submit in writing any information they would have been entitled to 
give orally. 

 

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS AT THE REMOTE HEARING 
 
Chair’s introduction and opening comments 
 

17. The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee Members and Officers 
and welcome the Applicant and Representors (or their 
representatives), and establish the identity of all who will be taking 
part. 

Page 3



 
18. The Chair will outline the procedure to be followed.  
 
19. The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda. 
 

Licensing Manager 
 

20. When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the 
Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application. The 
Chair will invite all present, one by one, to ask the Licensing Officer 
questions if they wish, to clarify any points raised in the report. 

 
The Application 
 

21. The Applicant (and/or their representative) will address the Sub-
Committee and present information in support of the application and 
may call any witnesses to support the application, one witness at a 
time [maximum 15 minutes]. 

 
22. The Chair will invite the Representors to ask questions of the 

Applicant in the following order [maximum 5 minutes each party]: 
 

 Police; 
 Other Responsible Authorities; 
 Ward Councillors; 
 Public representation 
 Members of the Sub-Committee; 
 The Sub-Committee’s legal adviser. 

 
The Representations 
 

23. The Chair will invite the Representors and/or their representative in 
the following order to address the Members of the Sub-Committee 
and call any witnesses in support of their representation [maximum 
15 minutes each party]: 

 
 Police 
 Other Responsible Authorities 
 Ward Councillors 
 Public representation 
 Members of the Sub-Committee 

 

Page 4



24. The Chair will invite the Applicant and each other party to ask 
questions of each Representor and/or their witnesses after each 
presentation [maximum 5 minutes per Representor].  The Chair will 
invite the Committee Members to ask questions of each Representor 
(or their representative) and/or their witnesses after each 
presentation. 

 
25. Where there are groups of individuals with a common interest, for 

example local residents, presentation through an appointed 
spokesperson is preferred but not mandated. 

 
Summaries 
 

26. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in the 
following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes each 
party] 

 
 Police 
 Other Responsible Authorities 
 Ward Councillors 
 Public representation 

 
27. The Chair will invite the Applicant (or their representative) to 

summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes]. 
 

28. The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity to 
seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or 
seek advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal 
Advisor on law and jurisdiction. 

 
Determination 
 

29. The Sub-Committee will withdraw to consider their decision with the 
Legal Adviser and the Democratic Services Officer in a separate 
private on line meeting. These officers will not comment on the 
merits of the application, but will be present to provide advice on 
legal and procedural points and to record the decision.  

 
30. If the decision is made following the conclusion of the hearing, the 

Sub-Committee will return to the public online meeting to announce 
an outline of the decision to those present. This decision will then be 
communicated in full in writing, including reasons for the decision, to 
the Applicant and all Representors (whether in attendance or not) 

Page 5



usually within 5 working days of the hearing. There can be no further 
questions or statements. 

 
31. If the Sub-Committee does not make a decision on the day of the 

hearing, the decision will be made within 5 working days beginning 
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. The 
Democratic Services Officer will inform the parties that they are no 
longer required and the decision will be communicated in writing to 
the Applicant and Representors within 5 working days of the decision 
being made. 

 
The notification will include information about the rights of appeal 
against the determination made. 

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 9 November 2020 

Present Councillors Galvin, Melly and Norman 

 

22. Chair  
 

Resolved: That Cllr Norman be elected to act as Chair of the 
hearing. 

 
23. Introductions  

 
The Chair introduced those participating in the hearing: the Sub-
Committee Members, the Applicant, the Applicant’s interpreter, 
the Police Representor and her two witnesses, the Licensing 
Authority Representor, and the Senior Licensing Officer 
presenting the report.  Also present were the Legal Adviser, the 
Democracy Officer and the Litigation Solicitor who was 
shadowing the Legal Adviser.   
 

24. Declarations of Interest  
 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the hearing any 
personal interests not included on the Register of Interests, and 
any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests, which they 
might have in the business on the agenda.  No interests were 
declared. 
 

25. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

Resolved: That the Press and Public be excluded from the 
hearing: 
 

a) During any discussion relating to Annex 5 (c) to 
the report at Agenda Item 6 (The Determination 
of a Section 18(3)(a) Application for a Premises 
Licence), on the grounds that it contains 
information relating to an individual, which is 
classed as exempt under Schedule 12A to 
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 
(as revised by The Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and 

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



b) During the sub-committee’s deliberations and 
decision-making at the end of the hearing, on the 
grounds that the public interest in excluding the 
public outweighs the public interest in that part of 
the meeting taking place in public, under 
Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulation 2005.  

 
26. Minutes  

 

Resolved: That the minutes of the Licensing Hearings held on 
6 August 2020 and 17 August 2020 be approved as 
a correct record, to be signed by the Chair at a later 
date. 

 
27. The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application for a 

Premises Licence by Mr Wenlln Chen in respect of 
Haizhonglao Hot Pot & BBQ, 12 George Hudson Street, 
York, YO1 6LP (CYC-067017)  
 
Members considered an application by Wenlin Chen for a 
premises licence in respect of Haizhonglau Hot Pot & BBQ, 12 
George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP. 
 
In considering the application and the representations made, the 
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives 
were relevant to this Hearing: 

 

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 
1. The application form.  
 
2. The papers before it. 

 
3. The Licensing Manager’s report and her comments at the 

Hearing. The Licensing Manager outlined the report and 
the annexes, highlighting the location of the premises 
within the Red Zone of the cumulative impact assessment 
area (CIA) approved by Council on 21 March 2020.  She 

Page 8



noted that the Applicant had complied with all statutory 
requirements in terms of consultation and that there were 
no outstanding Planning issues.  She drew attention to the 
representations received from North Yorkshire Police, 
including the additional information published in the 
Agenda Supplement, and from the Licensing Authority.  
Finally, she advised the Sub Committee of the options 
open to them in determining the application.   
 

4. The representations made at the hearing by the Applicant, 
through his interpreter, Alan Man.  He stated that, 
following the downturn in the catering industry that had 
resulted from the Covid-19 pandemic, he had conceived 
the idea of a contactless restaurant system. As a young 
entrepreneur, he wanted to open the country’s first 
automated restaurant in York.  He had put a lot of time 
and investment into this idea and saw no reason why he 
could not run it properly, nor why his application should 
not be approved. 

 
In response to questions put to him by the Police 
Representor and members of the Sub-Committee, the 
Applicant stated that: 

 He had completed the application form himself, but 
with assistance because he had problems with 
English;  

 He had gained experience of operating food-led 
establishments by working at the Regency 
restaurant on Barbican Road, York; 

 He intended to serve alcohol at the premises only 
with food, and would be happy to amend his 
application accordingly in order for this to be 
enforceable. 

 
5. The representations made by PS Jackie Booth on behalf 

of North Yorkshire Police, in writing and at the hearing.  
PS Booth explained that the police objected to the 
application on the grounds that the premises were located 
within the city’s CIA Red Zone, and that this, together with 
concerns about the Applicant’s potential appointment as 
both the licence holder and the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS), meant that granting the application 
would undermine the Crime Prevention Objective.  She 
stated that the Applicant had not addressed these matters 
in his application, nor made any attempt to liaise with the 

Page 9



responsible authorities or offer mitigation measures.  The 
operating schedule provided in the application was sub-
standard, being unclear as to the installation and details of 
CCTV cameras, and giving no precise, enforceable 
conditions for the operation of the restaurant.  Although 
the application was for opening hours with the sale of 
alcohol from 11:00-00:00, no application had been made 
for late night refreshment.  This all suggested that the 
Applicant was either unfamiliar with the licensing 
requirements or not prepared to offer precise conditions.   
 
PS Booth then outlined the reasons why the Applicant was 
not considered suitable to be the licence holder and DPS.  
She referred to the exempt information contained in Annex 
5c and the Agenda Supplement as relevant to this matter.  
She stated that the Applicant was listed as the sole 
director of a licensed premises at 16 Barbican Road, from 
which the licence had been revoked for reasons of crime 
prevention.  Statements within the exempt information 
indicated a link between the Applicant and persons who 
had undermined the prevention of crime licensing 
objective.  The Applicant had also failed to explain why the 
council should depart from its Statement of Licensing 
Policy to grant the application in this case. 
 
PC Kim Hollis was called as a witness.  She stated that 
she had attended the Regency restaurant, at 16 Barbican 
Road, on a number of occasions and each time had 
struggled to obtain details of who was in charge of the 
premises.  She also said that, despite an unprecedented 
number of business closures during the pandemic, there 
had not been a corresponding decrease in crime or public 
nuisance in the city.  In fact, new challenges had arisen in 
terms of anti-social behaviour associated with off-sales of 
alcohol as well as sales on licensed premises. 
 
PS Booth then resumed, noting that the application did not 
mention the plans for a contactless restaurant referred to 
by the Applicant at the hearing.  She re-iterated that the 
Applicant had made no attempt to engage with the 
responsible authorities, that he had been confirmed as 
sole director of the 16 Barbican Road premises, and that 
there was nothing in the application to address the 
ongoing concerns with regard to the CIA. 
 

Page 10



PS Booth then responded to questions put to her by the 
Applicant and members of the Sub-Committee, stating 
that: 

 The Barbican Road premises licence had been 
revoked following a hearing on 8 June 2020. 

 An appeal against the revocation had been lodged 
at the Magistrates’ Court and was currently 
pending. 

 The Applicant was still listed at Companies House 
as a Director of the premises. 

 She had tried to engage with the Applicant by calling 
him on the telephone number provided, but he had 
not answered and neither had he attempted to seek 
advice. 

 The onus was on the person applying for the licence 
to contact the responsible authorities. 

 An application for a restaurant premises licence 
within the CIA would be expected to include robust 
and enforceable conditions in relation to: no service 
of alcohol except with food, permission to serve late 
night refreshment, staff training, a refusals log, and 
signage asking customers to leave quietly. 

 The Applicant could run a restaurant at the premises 
without a licence, relying on the existing planning 
permission, provided he did not serve alcohol; 
however granting a licence would provide more 
opportunities for financial gain and a consequent 
increase in the risk of harm, due to the need for 
more staff and other issues relating to the operation 
of the business. 

 
6. The representations made by Nigel Woodhead, the 

Licensing Enforcement Officer for City of York Council, in 
writing and at the hearing.   
 
Mr Woodhead explained that the premises lay within 
York’s CIA Red Zone, an area identified in the council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy as being under the most 
stress from crime and disorder and public nuisance, as set 
out in paragraphs 9:13 and 9:14 of the policy.  The policy 
stated that all licence applications in this zone, if relevant 
representations were received, should be refused unless 
the applicant could show how their application would not 
lead to an increase in the impact of licensed premises in 
the zone.  Applicants were also required to demonstrate, 

Page 11



through their operating schedule, the measures they 
would take to satisfy the council and responsible 
authorities that granting the licence would not add to the 
cumulative impact.  The application in this case had failed 
to refer to the Red Zone and to identify any measures to 
be taken.  There was no mention of a drinking-up time; no 
offer of any substantial conditions; the reference to CCTV 
indicated that it ‘should’ be installed and not that it would; 
the operating schedule was sub-standard and not tailored 
to the operation of a restaurant.  This demonstrated that 
the Applicant had not taken into account the council’s 
statement of licensing policy or government guidance. 
 
Mr Woodhead then responded to questions put to him by 
the Applicant, Police Representor and members of the 
Sub-Committee, stating that: 

 He had not personally attempted to contact the 
Applicant on the phone number provided, but a 
Licensing officer would have done. 

 The DPS (in this case, the Applicant) should be the 
point of contact at the premises for all authorities and 
be contactable at all times. 

 Many more stringent conditions and checks would be 
needed before the licence could be granted; he was 
also aware that the police would require a number of 
conditions in relation to CCTV. 

 
During the above questions the Applicant, through his 
interpreter, stated that CCTV had been installed inside 
and outside the premises; that footage of an incident in 
September had been requested by, and provided to, the 
police; that an experienced manager had been employed 
and would be training staff; that currently there were 30-40 
covers at the restaurant; that notices would be displayed 
asking customers to leave quietly at 10:30 and reminding 
them of the drinking-up time; and that this would be his 
own business independent of his family. 

 
The Representors and the Applicant were each then given 
the opportunity to sum up.  

 
PS Booth summed up, stating that the application should 
be refused because nothing had been put forward at the 
hearing to say why an exception should be made to the 
Statement of Licensing Policy in order to grant this 

Page 12



application within the CIA Red Zone.  She also noted the 
concerns raised by the lack of contact with the Applicant 
and asked Members to consider the exempt information 
provided by the police. 

 
Nigel Woodhead summed up, stating that he was in 
agreement with the police in this matter.  The Applicant 
should have been aware that the premises were in the 
Red Zone and should have submitted information to show 
how this would be dealt with.  Nothing said at the hearing 
had given him confidence that the premises would be 
properly run by the Applicant. 

 
The Applicant summed up via his interpreter, stating that 
he believed he could manage the premises properly 
alongside a new manager who would be appointed.  He 
had been through the required training and hoped to be 
given the chance to learn and gain more experience by 
starting up this business independently.  As a foreigner it 
was difficult for him to start a business in this country, so 
he felt under pressure and was perhaps finding it difficult 
to express himself.  He said that he would be happy to 
provide any further information required and to have 
conditions placed on the licence.  All information was 
recorded and could be shown to the authorities. 

 
The following points of clarification were provided: 

 The Licensing Manager confirmed that the premises 
were currently vacant; 

 The Applicant confirmed that he would be happy to 
accept any reasonable changes to conditions, new 
conditions, or changes to hours of operation. 

 
In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee 
had to determine whether the licence application 
demonstrated that the premises would not undermine the 
licensing objectives.  Having regard to the above evidence 
and representations received, the Sub-Committee 
considered the steps which were available to them to take 
under Section 18(3) (a) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives: 

 
Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for.  

 

Page 13



Option 2: Grant the licence with modified/additional 
conditions imposed by the licensing 
committee.  

 
Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the 

licensable activities to which the application 
relates and modify/add conditions accordingly.   

 
Option 4: Reject the application.   
 
The Sub-Committee rejected Options 1, 2 and 3, and 
 
Resolved: That the application for a premises licence be 

rejected. 
 
Reasons: (i) The Council’s special policy relating to 

cumulative impact creates a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for the grant or 
variation of premises licences which are likely 
to add to the existing cumulative impact will 
normally be refused following the receipt of 
representations, unless the applicant can 
demonstrate in the operating schedule that the 
application will not add to the cumulative 
impact. The premises is within the red area of 
the Cumulative Impact Area (CIA). 

 
(ii) The Sub-Committee notes that the 
cumulative impact of the number, type and the 
density of licensed premises in the CIA may 
lead to problems of public nuisance and crime 
and disorder and that the premises being in 
the CIA does not act as an absolute prohibition 
on granting or varying new licences within that 
area.  Each application must be considered on 
its own merit and it is possible for an applicant 
to rebut the above presumption if they can 
demonstrate that their application for a 
premises licence would not add to the 
cumulative impact already being experienced 
in the CIA.  Representations have been 
received from North Yorkshire Police and the 
Licensing Authority that the licensing 
objectives of prevention of crime and disorder 

Page 14



and prevention of public nuisance would be 
undermined by the grant of the licence. 

 
(iii) The Sub-Committee considers that the 
onus lies upon the Applicant (to the civil 
standard) to evidence that the operation of the 
premises, if licensed, would not add to the 
cumulative effect of having more licensed 
premises in the CIA, with regard to the 
licensing objectives. 

 
(iv) The Sub-Committee notes in particular 
the concern of the Police that granting the 
application would add to the cumulative effect 
of having more licensed premises in the CIA. 
The Sub-Committee considers that the Police 
concern carries great weight in accordance 
with paragraph 9.12 of the statutory guidance.  

 
(v) The Sub-Committee notes that the 
Licensing Authority supports the Police 
objection. 

 
(vi) The Sub Committee notes the Applicant 
has made no attempt in the operating 
schedule to address the CIA policy. Although 
the Applicant offered additional control 
measures at the hearing, the Sub-Committee 
are concerned that the Applicant has not 
sufficiently addressed what is a very high bar 
to cross in terms of premises licence 
applications for premises in the CIA. They 
consider that the Applicant has missed the 
point in the Council’s licensing policy that 
where a premises licence is sought for 
premises within a CIA, there is a presumption 
that the application will be refused if an 
applicant does not demonstrate that granting 
the application would not add to the 
cumulative effect of having more licensed 
premises in the CIA.  The Sub-Committee is 
concerned that any grant of the application in 
the red zone requires a particularly robust 
operating schedule, which should demonstrate 
particular measures at the premises to 

Page 15



address the likely impact of the availability of 
alcohol in an area that already experiences a 
high volume of antisocial and criminal 
behaviour and public nuisance, these issues 
being factors behind the creating of the CIA in 
the first place. The Sub-Committee has heard 
nothing to satisfy it that the application has 
met that very high bar and that an exception to 
the policy applies in this particular case. 

 
(vii) The Sub-Committee is not satisfied from 
the evidence before it that the Applicant has 
rebutted the presumption against granting a 
licence for a new premises situated in the CIA, 
and concludes on the evidence that granting 
the licence would undermine the licensing 
objective of preventing crime and disorder and 
public nuisance. 

 
(viii) Whilst the Sub-Committee notes the 
other matters raised in objection by the Police, 
including the Police evidence marked as 
‘exempt’, it does not consider it necessary to 
make a determination regarding those matters 
given its above conclusions. 

 
The Sub-Committee has made this decision taking into 
consideration the written and verbal representations, the 
Agenda pack and Supplementary Agenda, the Licensing 
Objectives, the City of York Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State’s Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr G Norman, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 12.40 pm]. 

Page 16



 

 

  
 

   

 
Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee 
 

25 January 2021 

Report from the Assistant Director – Planning & Public Protection 

Section 18(3) (a) Application for a premises licence for Haizhonglao 
Hot Pot & BBQ, 12 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP 

Summary 

1. This report seeks Members determination of an application for the 
grant of a premises licence, which has been made under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

2. Application reference number:   CYC-67498 

3. Name of applicant:   Man Wai Leung 

4. Type of authorisation applied for:   Grant of Premises Licence 

5. Summary of application:   

The proposal is to allow for the provision of the following activities: 

Proposed Activity Timings 

Recorded Music(Indoors) 11:00 – 23:00 everyday 
 

Sale of alcohol (on & off sales) 
 

11:00 – 23:00 everyday 

Opening times 11:00 – 23:00 everyday 

  

Background 

6. A copy of the application can be found at Annex 1, including a 
plan(s) of the premises.   

 
7.  The premises is described in the application as a contactless 

restaurant run by robot waiters to reduce the risk of human to 
human contact due to the virus transmission risk. 

 
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



 

8. An overview of the circumstances in which entertainment activities 
are not licensable can be found at Annex 2.   

 
       Promotion of Licensing Objectives  

8.  The operating schedule submitted by the applicant shows that the 
licensing objectives would be met as follows: 

9. General 

 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four 
licensing objectives which must be addressed when licensing 
functions are undertaken. Each objective is of equal importance. 

10. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder   

 A 16 channel hi-resolution colour CCTV camera system has been 
installed for the premises that will cover both indoor and outdoor 
area including the shop front and rear car park. It will be maintained, 
working and recording at all opening and closing time (24 hrs) 

11. Public Safety 
  
 A full risk assessment taking into account public safety should be 

carried out at the premises to identify potential hazards posed to 
staff or customers and setting out precautions to manage the 
hazards. 

 
12. The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 All staff should be trained on the content of the policy to ensure a 
commitment to good noise management. A record should be kept of 
the date and name of person trained and made available for 
inspection by the Licensing Authority. Signs will be put up 
asking/reminding customers to leave quietly and respect the local 
residents.  

 
13. The Protection of Children From Harm 
  
 We will operate a challenge 25 age verification policy that the only 

acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current passport, 
photocard driving licence, military ID card or ID carrying the PASS 
logo. Relevant signs will be put up at point of sale. Staff training will 
be given and all training records will be kept for a minimum of one 
year and will be made available immediately upon request from any 
responsible authority.  

Page 18



 

 
 The applicant has produced an additional document to 

accompany the operating schedule which appears in full at 
Annex 1. 

 
 Special Policy Consideration 

14.  This premises is located within the cumulative impact assessment 
(CIA) area approved by full council on 21 March 2019.  The 
assessment can be found at Annex 3.  Section 9 of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy which deals with Cumulative Impact can be found 
at Annex 4. 

 
    Consultation  

 
15. Consultation was carried out by the applicant in accordance with 

s13, and s17 (5) of the Act and Regulation 42, Parts 2 and 4 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates) Regulations 2005, which concern the displaying of a 
notice on the premises and an advertisement in a local paper giving 
details of the application and serving a copy of the application on all 
responsible authorities.  The applicant complied with all statutory 
requirements.  In addition the relevant ward councillors and/or parish 
council were notified by way of register.    

16. All procedural aspects of this application have been complied with. 
 

Summary of Representations made by Responsible Authorities 
 
17.  North Yorkshire Police have made a representation on the grounds 

that the licensing objectives, prevention of crime and disorder and 
prevention of public nuisance will be undermined by the granting of 
this application. Furthermore the applicant fails to demonstrate how 
this application would not add to the cumulative impact of licensed 
premises already experienced within the CIA especially the Red 
Zone. 

 
18. The Police representation is attached at Annex 5.  
 
        Summary of Representations made by Other Parties  
 
19.  There have been no other representations received from other 

persons. 

20. A map showing the general area around the venue is attached at 
Annex 6. 

Page 19



 

Options  

21. By virtue of s18(4) of the Act, the Committee have the following 
options available to them in making their decision: -  

22. Option 1:  Grant the licence in the terms applied for. 

23. Option 2: Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions 
imposed by the licensing committee. 

24. Option 3:  Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates and modify/add conditions 
accordingly. 

25. Option 4:  Reject the application. 
 
Analysis 

26. The following could be the result of any decision made this Sub 
Committee:- 

27. Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 
any of the representors. 

 
28. Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant or any of the representors. 
 
29. Option 3:  This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant or any of the representors. 
 
30. Option 4:  This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 

the applicant.  
 

Council Plan 
 

31. The Licensing Act 2003 has four objectives the prevention of crime 
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm.   

32. By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into 
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when 
determining licensing applications the Council are supporting the 
new and existing licence trade, as well as local residents and 
businesses.  The functions support the Council’s Plan of safe 
communities and culture for all, and a good quality of life for 
everyone.  

  

Page 20



 

 Implications 

33.  

 Financial  - N/A 

 Human Resources (HR) – N/A 

 Equalities – N/A      

 Legal – This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court 
by the applicant or any of the representors. 

 
 Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty 

under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime 
and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s 
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and 
disorder in the city. 

 
 Information Technology (IT) – N/A 

 Property – N/A 

              Other – none     
 
Risk Management 
 

34. All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full 
training on the Act and the regulations governing hearings.  They 
are aware that any decision made which is unreasonable or unlawful 
could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation and 
potential financial penalty. 

 
35. The report details the options available to the panel in determining 

the application and recommends that a decision be reached.  There 
are no risks involved with this recommendation. 

  
 Recommendations 

36.  Members determine the application. 
Reason:  To address the representations received as required by 
the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Lesley Cooke 
Licensing Manager 
 
Tel No. 01904 551515 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director for Planning and Public 
Protection. 
 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
31/12/2020  

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
Ext: 1004 
 

Wards Affected:  Micklegate Ward   

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
Annexes: 
 

Annex 1  -   Application form & Plans 
Annex 2  -   Overview of Circumstances in which Entertainment 
Actitivies are not Licensable 
Annex 3  -   Cumulative Impact  
Annex 4  -    Licensing Policy Annex 
Annex 5 -    North Yorkshire Police Representation  
Annex 6 -   Map of area 
Annex 7 -   Mandatory Conditions         
Annex 8 -   Legislation and Policy Considerations   
 
 

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



Annex 2 
 

Home Office – Guidance Issued Under Section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 
 
Section 16 Regulated Entertainment  
 
Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are not 
licensable  

 
16.5  There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other 

authorisation18) under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give 
examples of every eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not 
licensable. However, the following activities are examples of entertainment which 
are not licensable:  

 
• activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;  
• activities in places of public religious worship;  
• education – teaching students to perform music or to dance;  
• the demonstration of a product – for example, a guitar – in a music shop;  
• the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where 

no charge is made with a view to making a profit; 
• Morris dancing (or similar)  
• Incidental music – the performance of live music or the playing of recorded 

music if it is incidental to some other activity;  
• Incidental film – an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some 

other activity;  
• A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;  
• Garden fetes – or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private 

gain;  
• Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art 

galleries;  
• Television or radio broadcasts – as long as the programme is live and 

simultaneous;  
• Vehicles in motion – at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or 

temporarily parked;  
• Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);  
• Stand-up comedy; and  
• Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors).  

 
16.6  As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act, no licence 

is required for the following activities:  
 

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the 

Page 47



audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the 
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures 
that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.  

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 
23.00 on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.  

• Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not 
exceed 1000.  

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:  
– a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, on any premises.  
– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a workplace26 that does not have a licence, provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar 
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises.  

– a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a 
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not 
exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on 
the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.  

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:  
– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in 
a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises.  

– any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 
the non- residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, 
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school 
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.  

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, with no limit on audience size for:  

– any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local 
authority;  

Page 48



– any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of 
the health care provider;  

– any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where 
the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; 
and  

– any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling 
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it 
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the 
audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the 
same site for more than 28 consecutive days.  

 

16.7  The deregulatory changes mean that, for example, an indoor sporting event that 
takes place between 07.00 and 23.30 on a particular day is licensable in respect 
of activities taking place between 07.00-08.00 and 23.00-23.30. Similarly, where 
the audience for a performance of dance fluctuates, those activities are 
licensable if, and for so long as, the number of people in the audience exceeds 
500. If organisers are uncertain as to audience sizes or if audience migration is 
likely, it might be easier and more flexible to secure an appropriate authorisation. 
Examples of where a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) could still be required 
include if the activity is the playing of recorded music or the exhibition of a film 
that requires an authorisation; or if the entertainment is not authorised by an 
existing licence or certificate and its conditions.  

16.8  Of course, anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment 
activities – whether or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act – 
must comply with any applicable duties that may be imposed by other legislation 
relevant to the event (e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, health and 
safety, noise, nuisance and planning). Any such person should take steps to be 
aware of relevant best practice, and may find responsible authorities a useful 
source of expert support and advice.  

 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 3 
 

Cumulative Impact  
 
1. Cumulative impact has been included within the Section 182 guidance issued by the 

Home Office since the commencement of the Act.  Cumulative impact assessments 
were introduced at Section 5A of the Act by the Police and Crime Act 2017, with effect 
from 6 April 2018.  This provides provision for licensing authorities to publish a 
document, cumulative impact assessment, stating that the licensing authority 
considers that a number of relevant authorisations in respect of premises in one or 
more parts of its area, described in the assessment, is such that it is likely that it would 
be inconsistent with the authority’s duty under the Act to grant any further relevant 
authorisations in respect of premises in that part or those parts.   

 
2. Relevant authorisations means: 

 premises licence 

 club premises certificate 
 
3. Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives 

of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.  
 
4. The Council has included a Cumulative Impact Policy within its Statement of Licensing 

Policy since 2005, in relation to an area within York city centre.  Due to the changes 
within the city centre, mainly the locations where licensed premises are predominately 
operating, this area has increased over the years.    

 
Cumulative Impact Assessment 
 
5. As required by the Act the Council has reviewed the cumulative impact area following 

the receipt of evidence provided by North Yorkshire Police and the Councils Public 
Protection Service (noise).  The Council has published its first cumulative impact 
assessment (assessment) in relation to an area that has been identified in York city 
centre.  The assessment is available on the Council website or from the Licensing 
Section.  The assessment will be reviewed at least every three years as required by 
the Act.  A map showing the area can be found in the assessment.   

 
6. As required by the Act the Council has formally consulted on the assessment.  
  
7. By publishing the assessment the Council is setting down a strong statement of intent 

about its approach to considering applications for grant and variation of premises 
licences or club premises certificates in the area described.  The Council must have 
regard to the assessment when determining or revising this Statement of Licensing 
Policy.  The assessment does not change the fundamental way that a licensing 
decision is made, each application will be considered on its own merits.  It is open for 
the Council to grant an application where it is considered appropriate and where the 
applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would not be adding to 
the cumulative impact.  Applications in the area covered by the assessment should 
therefore give consideration to potential cumulative impact issues when setting out the 
steps that will be taken to promote the licensing objectives.  Where relevant 
representations are received and the Council determines to grant an application 
reasons for granting the application will be given to the applicant, the Chief Officer of 

Page 51



Police and all parties who made a relevant representation, with the reasons for 
departing from the Policy.    

 
8. Where no relevant representations are received an application within the cumulative 

impact area will be granted in terms consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
9. Applications for new premises licences or variations for premises situated within the 

cumulative impact area that are likely to add to the cumulative impact already 
experienced will normally be refused if relevant representations are received.   The 
applicant must demonstrate through the operating schedule, the steps that they intend 
to take so that the Council and responsible authorities can be satisfied that granting a 
new or varied licence will not add to the cumulative impact already being experienced.   

 
10. The onus is on the applicant to demonstrate to the responsible authorities the 

suitability of how their proposal will not add to the cumulative impact.  To assist this 
process the Council recommends early consultation with responsible authorities; this 
can be done directly with those authorities or through the Council’s Licensing Section.   

 
11. The Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment were approved 

by the City of York on the 21 March 2019.   
 

Cumulative Impact Area  
 
12. The published assessment relates to an area within York city centre.  This area has 

been identified because evidence shows that the cumulative impact of the number and 
concentration of licensed premises in this area continue to adversely affect residents, 
visitors and other businesses and therefore adversely affecting the promotion of the 
licensing objectives: 

 

 prevention of crime and disorder 

 prevention of public nuisance 
 
13. North Yorkshire Police and Public Protection have provided information that the nature 

of this area is such that the problems and cumulative impact directly relates to the 
style of businesses operating in the area and their clientele, due to the concentration 
of:  

 drink led premises – pubs, bars, nightclubs and restaurants/cafes; 

 entertainment premises – pubs, bars and nightclubs providing entertainment, 
especially late at night into the early hours of the morning; 

 late night refreshment premises – takeaways; and 

 off licence premises – supermarkets and convenience stores. 
 
14. A red zone has also been identified in this area due to the high concentration of 

licensed premises, the impact of which have lead to a high level of occurrences in 
relation to crime and disorder related issues.   Therefore, the Council should refuse all 
applications within the red zone where relevant representations are received, unless 
the applicant can show how their application would not lead to an increase in the 
impact of licensed premises in this zone.  A map showing the red zone can be found in 
the assessment.   

 

Page 52



ANNEX 4 
 

9.   Cumulative Impact  
 
 
9.1 Cumulative impact has been included within the Section 182 guidance issued by the 

Home Office since the commencement of the Act.  Cumulative impact assessments 
were introduced at Section 5A of the Act by the Police and Crime Act 2017, with 
effect from 6 April 2018.  This provides provision for licensing authorities to publish 
a document, cumulative impact assessment, stating that the licensing authority 
considers that a number of relevant authorisations in respect of premises in one or 
more parts of its area, described in the assessment, is such that it is likely that it 
would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty under the Act to grant any further 
relevant authorisations in respect of premises in that part or those parts.   

 
9.2 Relevant authorisations means: 

 premises licence 

 club premises certificate 
 
9.3 Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.  
 
9.4 The Council has included a Cumulative Impact Policy within its Statement of 

Licensing Policy since 2005, in relation to an area within York city centre.  Due to 
the changes within the city centre, mainly the locations where licensed premises are 
predominately operating, this area has increased over the years.   

 
Cumulative Impact Assessment 
 
9.5 As required by the Act the Council has reviewed the cumulative impact area 

following the receipt of evidence provided by North Yorkshire Police and the 
Councils Public Protection Service (noise).  The Council has published its first 
cumulative impact assessment (assessment) in relation to an area that has been 
identified in York city centre.  The assessment is available on the Council website or 
from the Licensing Section.  The assessment will be reviewed at least every three 
years as required by the Act.  A map showing the area can be found in the 
assessment.   

 
9.6 As required by the Act the Council has formally consulted on the assessment.  
  
9.7 By publishing the assessment the Council is setting down a strong statement of 

intent about its approach to considering applications for grant and variation of 
premises licences or club premises certificates in the area described.  The Council 
must have regard to the assessment when determining or revising this Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  The assessment does not change the fundamental way that a 
licensing decision is made, each application will be considered on its own merits.  It 
is open for the Council to grant an application where it is considered appropriate 
and where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would 
not be adding to the cumulative impact.  Applications in the area covered by the 
assessment should therefore give consideration to potential cumulative impact 
issues when setting out the steps that will be taken to promote the licensing 
objectives.  Where relevant representations are received and the Council 

Page 53



determines to grant an application reasons for granting the application will be given 
to the applicant, the Chief Officer of Police and all parties who made a relevant 
representation, with the reasons for departing from the Policy.    

 
9.8 Where no relevant representations are received an application within the cumulative 

impact area will be granted in terms consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
9.9 Applications for new premises licences or variations for premises situated within the 

cumulative impact area that are likely to add to the cumulative impact already 
experienced will normally be refused if relevant representations are received.   The 
applicant must demonstrate through the operating schedule, the steps that they 
intend to take so that the Council and responsible authorities can be satisfied that 
granting a new or varied licence will not add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced.   

 
9.10 The onus is on the applicant to demonstrate to the responsible authorities the 

suitability of how their proposal will not add to the cumulative impact.  To assist this 
process the Council recommends early consultation with responsible authorities; 
this can be done directly with those authorities or through the Council’s Licensing 
Section.   

 
Cumulative Impact Area  
 
9.11 The published assessment relates to an area within York city centre.  This area has 

been identified because evidence shows that the cumulative impact of the number 
and concentration of licensed premises in this area continue to adversely affect 
residents, visitors and other businesses and therefore adversely affecting the 
promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 

 prevention of crime and disorder 

 prevention of public nuisance 
 
9.12 North Yorkshire Police and Public Protection have provided information that the 

nature of this area is such that the problems and cumulative impact directly relates 
to the style of businesses operating in the area and their clientele, due to the 
concentration of:  

 drink led premises – pubs, bars, nightclubs and restaurants/cafes; 

 entertainment premises – pubs, bars and nightclubs providing entertainment, 
especially late at night into the early hours of the morning; 

 late night refreshment premises – takeaways; and 

 off licence premises – supermarkets and convenience stores. 
 
9.13  A red zone has also been identified in this area due to the high concentration of 

licensed premises, the impact of which have lead to a high level of occurrences in 
relation to crime and disorder related issues.   Therefore, the Council should refuse 
all applications within the red zone where relevant representations are received, 
unless the applicant can show how their application would not lead to an increase in 
the impact of licensed premises in this zone.  A map showing the red zone can be 
found in the assessment.   

 
 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



© Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100020818

°
0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.2 0.25

Km

Author:

1:2,500Scale:

12 George Hudson St

City of York Council

23 Oct 2020Date:

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

        ANNEX  7 
 

 
MANDATORY & PROHIBITED CONDITIONS – PREMISES LICENCE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS WHERE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL   
 
1.  In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions. 
 
2.  The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

(a)  at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 
(b)  at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence 
or his personal licence is suspended. 

 
3.   The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.  (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage individuals to – 

(i)   drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage 
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
favourable manner; 
(e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 
     (2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

Page 65



     (3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before 
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 
 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that – 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures – 

  (i)   beer or cider: ½ pint; 
 (ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 
 (iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and 
(c)  where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: ALCOHOL PRICING 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 – 

(a)  “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6); 
(b)  “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula – 

P = D + (D x V) 
where – 
(i)   P is the permitted price, 
(ii)  D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were  
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence – 

(i)   the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such 
a licence; 

(d)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 
Tax Act 1994(7). 

 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 

2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the 
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day. 

Page 66



MANDATORY CONDITION:  DOOR SUPERVISION 
 
1.  In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent 
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified 
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence 
must include a condition that each such individual must - 

(a)  be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001; or 
(b)  be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

 
2.  But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed - 

(a)  in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or 
(b)  in respect of premises in relation to - 

(i)  any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises 
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary 
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence, or 
(ii)  any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed 
by regulations under that Act). 

 
3.  For the purposes of this section - 

(a)  "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, 
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that 
Act), and 

(b)  paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as 
it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: EXHIBITION OF FILMS 
 
1.  In accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the admission of 
children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
 
2.  Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, 
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
body. 
 
3.  Where - 

(a)  the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
(b)  the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this 
subsection applies to the film in question, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority. 

 
4.  In this section - 'children' means persons aged under 18; and 'film classification body' means 
the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 
1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 
 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 8 

 

Legislation and Policy Considerations 

1. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application:  S4 
general duties of licensing authorities; s17 application for premises licence; s18 
determination of application for premises licence; s23 grant or rejection of 
application; ss19, 20 and 21 mandatory conditions; The Licensing Act 
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010; and The Licensing Act 2003 
(Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014.  

 
2. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 

Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application:  
Regulation 42, Part 2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to 
applications, notices and representations and advertisement of applications 
 

3. The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this 
application:  Section 2 The Licensing Objectives; Section 9 Determining 
applications; Section 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club 
certificates; and Section 14 Statements of licensing policy.  
 

4. The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing 
policy apply to this application:  5.0 Applications for Premises Licences, Club 
Premises Certificates and Variations; 6.0 Guidelines for Applicants; 7.0 
Saturation and Cumulative Impact and 8.0 Licensing Hours. 

 
5. The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the 
authority’s responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in 
the city. 
 

6. The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the 
right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights.  The 
Act also provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in 
existence, and the protection of private and family life. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 24/04/17 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Hearing 25 January 2021 

Additional papers submitted by the Representor (Police) 

 
1. Witness statement from PS133 Booth (Exempt) 

2. Witness Statement from PC 1671 Hollis (Exempt) 

3. Witness Statement from Immigration Officer Glyn Jones (Exempt) 

4. Witness Statement from Helen Sefton, Senior Licensing Officer at 
City of York Council (including exhibits HLS-1 and HLS-2) 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page Number 1 
 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
 

(Criminal Procedure Rules,  r. 27.2; 
Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B) 

 

 

  

 
STATEMENT OF Helen Louise SEFTON  

 
Age of witness (if over 18 , enter “over 18”): Over 18  

 
This statement (consisting of  7 pages) is true to the best of my knowledge 
and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable 
to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false or 
do not believe it to be true. 
 

I am a Senior Licensing Officer employed by the City of York Council to administer 

and enforce a wide range of licensable activities. Part of my role is to inspect 

licensed and unlicensed premises. I also administer applications for new licences 

and reviews of existing licences. 

 

On 8 September 2017 I was tasked to attend a multi-agency operation targeting 

two licensed premises within the district of York. At that time I held the position of 

Licensing Enforcement Officer. The operation was led by North Yorkshire Police, 

also in attendance were officers from the Home Office Immigration Enforcement 

Team. At 18:00 on 8 September 2017 I attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police 

Station in York where Inspector FREER outlined the plan for the evening and 

allocated roles and responsibilities to the Officers. I was to attend the address at 

16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA entering the premises under powers 

conferred under Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003, once I had carried out my 

inspection at 16 Barbican Road I was then to attend a second premises. 

 

Page 91



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

2 

At 18:45 I entered the licensed premises known as REGENCY Restaurant at 16 

Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. The restaurant was busy with customers and 

staff. I identified myself as a Licensing Enforcement Officer and spoke with the 

person who identified himself as the manager, he told me his name was Kevin 

LEUNG and he advised his actual name was MAN WEI LEUNG but preferred to 

be called Kevin. LEUNG advised he had been the manager at the premises for 2 

years. I proceeded to speak to LEUNG about the various permissions and 

conditions contained within the premises licence, issued in accordance with the 

Licensing Act 2003. At this time other Officers from North Yorkshire Police and the 

Home Office Immigration Team proceeded to search the premises and speak with 

other members of staff. I asked to see the CCTV system and LEUNG stated that 

only the business owner could operate the system as it required a passcode which 

he did not have access to.  

 

LEUNG stated the restaurant did not stay open past midnight. He stated that staff 

were trained but it was not documented. I noted there were no notices displayed 

asking customers to leave the premises quietly and there was no documented 

noise management plan. I then carried out an inspection of the entire premises 

which included the ground floor bar area, waiting area, restaurant and kitchen. I 

also went upstairs to the first floor and noted several rooms set up with karaoke 

equipment, televisions/screens, bench seating and gambling equipment such as 

dice and dice shakers. The first floor had a locked room with a name plate stating 

‘Reception’. Once entry was gained to this room it contained alcoholic drinks, 

various items of stock, several packets of playing cards and the CCTV system. On 

Page 92



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

3 

the second floor of the premises there were more karaoke rooms and also 

bedrooms containing bunk beds and personal effects. Several more rooms on this 

floor were locked via external padlocks. I was informed by the Police Officer in 

charge that the Immigration Officers were in the process of detaining four 

members of staff as they potentially did not have the right to work in the UK. I left 

the premises at Barbican Road with Police and Immigration Officers still present 

and proceeded to the second premises. 

 

In the summer of 2019 I was contacted by Inspector FREER of North Yorkshire 

Police, he told me of his intention to organise another multi agency visit to the 

REGENCY 16 Barbican Road in York, he wanted support from the Licensing 

Team.  

 

At 16:30 on 6 September 2019 in attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police 

Station. In attendance were officers from North Yorkshire Police, HMRC, Home 

Office Immigration Enforcement, the Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority, 

North Yorkshire Fire Authority Officers, City of York Council Housing Enforcement 

Officers and several interpreters.  

 

At 18:10 on 6 September 2019 I entered the premises known as REGENCY at 16 

Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. I entered the premises under powers conferred 

by Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003. Police and Immigration Officers were 

already in the premises as they had entered using powers granted under a 

warrant.  

Page 93



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

4 

I spoke with the manager of the premises Kevin LEUNG, real name MAN WEI 

LEUNG. LEUNG showed me his personal licence with Number 051706 issued by 

Manchester City Council and showing his address as 20 Kennedy Close, 

Dewsbury, WF12 7EL. LEUNG advised however this address needed to be 

changed to 12 Brookhill Drive, Leeds, LS17 8QG. I advised LEUNG to contact 

Manchester City Council to amend his licence ASAP as failure to advise his 

Licensing Authority of this change of circumstances was an offence under the 

Licensing Act 2003. I reminded LEUNG that we had met 2 years earlier, he 

advised me he had left his job at the premises shortly after September 2017 but 

had recently returned. I sat in the waiting area of the restaurant with LEUNG and 

went through the conditions on the premises licence whilst the Officers from the 

other agencies carried out the inspections and interviews with staff. LEUNG stated 

he was not the DPS at the premises that was ZHONG LE CHEN. He stated CHEN 

was not often at the premises but was in regular contact with LEUNG and did call 

LEUNG when he needed to. Whilst going through the conditions on the premises 

licence several breaches were identified as follows; ( the corresponding condition 

appears in brackets) 

a, The CCTV system was running 36 minutes behind (7). LEUNG had no idea how 

many days the CCTV recordings were kept (5).  

b, Staff were trained verbally but this training was not documented (16, 18 and 

19).  

c, There was no refusals register or incident report register (20, 21, and 22). There 

were no notices asking customers to leave quietly (23).  

Page 94



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

5 

d, There was no evidence of a noise management plan on site nor was there 

evidence of one being submitted to the Licensing Authority (35). I exhibit a copy 

of Part A of the premises licence including the conditions as Exhibit HLS/1. 

 

After speaking with LEUNG I undertook a full inspection of the premises. On the 

first floor I noted a strong smell of cigarette smoke in both the karaoke rooms and 

evidence of cigarette smoking (smell and used cigarettes and ash) in the 

Gentleman’s toilet. There were also sets of dice and dice shakers in each karaoke 

room. On the second floor there was evidence of persons sleeping in some of the 

karaoke rooms this included bedding (duvets, pillows etc.), personal effects such 

as clothing, shoes, toothbrushes and luggage. Some rooms on the second floor 

were in the process of being renovated/decorated. Whilst I was in one of the 

karaoke rooms a young white male with an Eastern European accent came into 

the room, he said he’d come to get his passport. When asked where he was 

sleeping he stated it was in this karaoke room. I met with Kevin CAULFIELD from 

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service who informed me that due to a defect 

on the fire alarm system he would be issuing a prohibition notice which would 

prohibit any persons sleeping on the premises. Kevin CAULFIELD had asked the 

manager LEUNG to operate the fire alarm system but LEUNG had been unable to 

operate the alarm properly. The Police Officer in charge informed me that several 

members of staff had been detained and four persons had been detained for 

potential immigration offences.  

 

Page 95



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

6 

After the inspection I reported my findings on the night to colleagues in the Council 

Gambling Commission, I also contacted Manchester City Council’s Licensing 

Team regarding LEUNG’S Personal Licence details. 

 

Following on from this visit on 7 February 2020 a review application was made in 

connection with the premises licence at REGENCY restaurant 16 Barbican Road 

by the Public Protection team from City of York Council. I was a witness for the 

Public Protection team at the Hearing and provided a statement of my findings 

during the two visits in 2017 and 2019. On 8 June 2020 at a City of York Council 

Licensing Sub-Committee meeting the premises licence for the REGENCY at 16 

Barbican Road was revoked. The Premises Licence Holder subsequently lodged 

an appeal to this decision and so the premises remained able to operate as a 

licensed premises pending the outcome of that appeal. 

 

On 25 November 2020 an application was received for the grant of a new 

Premises Licence at 12 George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP. The applicant was 

MAN WEI LEUNG of 12 Brookhill Drive, Leeds, LS17 8QG. Mr LEUNG was also 

named on the application as the proposed Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

and gave details of his Personal Licence, issued by Manchester City Council with 

the number 51706. He stated his date of birth was 21 May 1963. 

 

On 8 December 2020 the appeal against the revocation of the licence was 

dismissed by York Magistrate’s Court. On 10 December 2020 a letter outlining the 

revocation of the licence was hand delivered to the REGENCY restaurant, 16 

Page 96



             Page Number 
 

Continuation statement of Helen Louise SEFTON 
 

 

7 

Barbican Road by Kerrie SHIELDS, Licensing Enforcement Officer on my 

instruction. The letter was received by MAN WEI LEUNG. A copy of that letter is 

exhibited as HLS/2. 

Signed: ……HLSefton…………………………… (witness) 

Date:     ……11/01/2021………………………………… 

(To be completed if applicable: ……………………………………………………..… 

being unable to read the above statement, I ……………………………………….. 

of ……………………………………………………………………………................... 

read it to him/her before he/she signed it. 

Signed: …………………………………….     Date: ……………………………….. 

 
 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



HLS/1 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

PREMISES LICENCE 
 

Schedule 12 

Part A 

  

 

Part 1 Premises details 

Postal address of premises: 

 

16 Barbican Road 
 

Post town: York Post code: YO10 5AA 

Telephone number: 01904 623134 

 

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date. 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 

Live Music 

Recorded Music 

Performances of Dance 

Activities like music/dance 

Late Night Refreshment 

Supply of Alcohol 

 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

 

LIVE MUSIC 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

Premises licence number  

CYC - 009221 

 

 

Page 99



 

 

RECORDED MUSIC 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

PERFORMANCES OF DANCE 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

ACTIVITIES LIKE MUSIC/DANCE 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

23:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

23:00 - 03:30 

 

 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

 

Non Standard Timings for Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Activities like 

Music/Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply of Alcohol: 

 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 

Year's Day. 

 

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences. 

 

 

Page 100



 

The Opening Hours of the Premises 

 

Monday 

10:00 - 04:00 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Thursday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Friday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Saturday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Sunday 

10:00 - 04:00 

 

 

Non Standard Timings: 

 

  

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 

Year's Day. 

 

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences. 

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 

supplies: 

  

On and off the premises 

 

Part 2  

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder 

of premise licence: 

Name:  Mr Zhongle Chen 

 

Address:   16 Barbican Road 

  York 

  YO10 5AA 

 

Telephone number: None 

 

Email address: None 

 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 

premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 

 

Name:   Mr Zhongle Chen 

 

Address:   16 Barbican Road 

  York 

  YO10 5AA 

 

Telephone number:  None 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 

premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:  

 

Selby District Council  

LN/000006043 

 

Page 101



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 

authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions. 

 

2.  The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 

personal licence is suspended. 

 

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 

made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 

 

4.  (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 

activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale 

or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage individuals to – 

(i)   drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied 

on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 

authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 

fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries 

a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner 

which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 

glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 

manner; 

(e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 

5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 

 

6.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an 

age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 

alcohol. 

     (2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 

that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 

policy. 

     (3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 

18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 

(a)  a holographic mark, or 

(b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 

 

 

Page 102



 

7.  The responsible person must ensure that – 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready 

for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following 

measures – 

 (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and 

(c)  where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to 

be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING 

 

1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 

the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 

2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 – 

(a)  “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 

(b)  “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula – P = D + (D x V) 

where – 

(i)  P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

premises licence – 

(i)   the holder of the premises licence, 

(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence; 

(d)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 

premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity 

which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax 

Act 1994. 

 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 

paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the 

next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 

day. 

 

 

Page 103



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

Licensing Objectives 
 

Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

 

1.  CCTV recordings will include, as a minimum, a head and shoulders image of each individual 

who enters the premises through the main entrance. 

 

Protection of Children from Harm 

 

2.  There shall be a "Challenge 21" policy in operation at the premises requiring any individual 

who appears to be under the age of 21 to produce identification to prove that they are over 

the age of 18, the sale of alcohol being refused where they are unable to do so. 

 

3.  The following forms of identification are acceptable: photocard driving licence, valid 

passport, PASS accredited 'Proof of Age Card', any other form of identification previously 

agreed with representitives of North Yorkshire Police licensing Unit. 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing 

authority 
 

1. Prior to using the karaoke rooms customers must have consumed a meal in the restaurant, 

excluding snacks. 

 

2. Digital colour CCTV will be installed to cover the premises and will include all areas to where 

public have access for licensable activities and where the public can consume alcohol. For the 

purpose of clarity this will include all rooms and stairways to which the public have access for 

licensable activities and where the public can consume alcohol. 

 

3.  It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are open. 

 

4. The recordings should be of sufficient quality to be produced in Court or other such hearing. 

 

5. Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28 days. 

 

6. Copies of the recordings will be made available to any Responsible Authority within 48hrs of 

request. 

 

7. Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording. 

 

8. All off sales shall be made in sealed containers save for those that are intended for 

consumption within the building. 

 

9. After 24:00hrs the only door used by members of the public to enter the premises shall be 

the main door on to Barbican Road. 

 

10. Last public entry to the premises shall be 24:00hrs.  For the purpose of clarity no members 

of the public will be allowed entry to the premises after 24:00hrs until the close of business 

(this does not prevent re-entry to customers who have left the venue to smoke). 

 

11. After 24:00hrs customers who have left the venue to smoke shall be monitored by a Door 

Supervisor in a clearly demarked area at the front of the venue which will not block the 

footpath. 

 

Page 104



12. Two SIA Door Supervisors shall be provided at the venue from 24:00hrs until the close of 

business, with at least one staffing the main door on to Barbican Road. 

 

13. The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current passport, photocard 

driving licence or identification carrying the PASS logo. 

 

14. Standard one pint capacity, half pint capacity and “high ball tumbler” drinking glasses will 

be strengthened glass (tempered glassware) in design whereby in the event of breakage the 

glass will fragment and no sharp edges are left. 

 

15. Drinking glasses of any type should not be allowed to enter or leave the premises whilst 

under the customers care. 

 

16. Documented staff training will be given regarding the retail sale of alcohol, the conditions 

attached to the premises licence and the opening times of the venue. 

 

17. Such training (referred to in Condition 16) will be refreshed and documented every 6 

months. 

 

18.  Such training records (referred to in Condition 16) should be kept for at least 3 years. 

 

19. Such training records (referred to Condition 16) will be made available for inspection upon 

request by any Responsible Authority. 

 

20. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will record 

incidents of staff refusals to underage or drunk people, as well as incidents of any anti-social 

behaviour and ejections from the premises. 

 

21. Both the above documents (referred to in Condition 20) will be kept for at least 3 years. 

 

22. Both the above documents (referred to in Condition 20) will be available for inspection 

upon request by any Responsible Authority. 

 

23. Prominent clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting the public to 

respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly. 

 

24. So as to ensure the Licensing Objective the prevention of crime and disorder is not 

undermined there shall be a maximum capacity of 100 persons of which there shall be no 

more that 30 persons on the first floor and no more that 20 persons on the second floor. 

 

25. When the karaoke rooms are being used there shall be at least one member of staff 

permanently situated on each floor of the venue on which the room is being used. 

 

26. The member of staff shall monitor the rooms that are in use and will enter each room that 

is occupied no less than every 30 minutes. 

 

27. The members of staff situated on the first and second floor shall be in direct radio link with 

the Door Staff. 

 

28. All alcohol consumed in the karaoke rooms shall be served by way of waiter/waitress 

service. 

 

29. No dancing is to take place on the ground floor of the building at anytime. 

 

30. All users of the karaoke rooms must have evidence of their room hire on their food bill as 

suitable evidence of food purchase. 

Page 105



 

31. All doors and windows shall be closed during regulated entertainment or, when 

entertainment is not provided, after 23:00hrs each night (except for ingress and egress). 

 

32. A direct contact number for the duty manager shall be made available to residents living in 

the vicinity of the premises on request. 

 

33. The use of external areas shall be restricted to 10:00hrs – 23:00hrs each day. After this 

time, customers shall only be permitted at the front of the property, fronting onto Barbican 

Road, for the purpose of smoking. 

 

35. A detailed noise management plan shall be devised prior to the premises operating. The 

plan should be submitted and agreed by the local licensing authority to their reasonable 

satisfaction prior to its implementation. It shall show how nearby residential properties will be 

protected from noise generated at the premises. The agreed noise management plan shall be 

implemented at all times during regulated entertainment. 

 

 
 

Annex 4 – Approved Plan - Plan Number BR.(16)/01 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Date:   28/09/2005 

The Director of Communities 25/06/2015 (Transfer and DPS Variation) 

& Neighbourhoods 

 

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552512 

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax:     01904 551590 

James Street Email:  licensing.unit@york.gov.uk  

York 

YO10 3DS Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing 

Page 106

http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing


 
PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY  

 
Part B 

 
 

Part 1 Premises details 

Postal address of premises: 

 

16 Barbican Road 
 

Post town: York  Post code: YO10 5AA 

Telephone number: 01904 623134 

 

 

Where the licence is time limited the date: 

 

This licence has no expiry date. 

 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 

Live Music 

Recorded Music 

Performances of Dance 

Activities like music/dance 

Late Night Refreshment 

Supply of Alcohol 

 

 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

 

LIVE MUSIC 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

 

Premises licence number  

CYC - 009221 

 

 

Page 107



RECORDED MUSIC 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

PERFORMANCES OF DANCE 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

ACTIVITIES LIKE MUSIC/DANCE 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 

Indoors  

 

Monday 

23:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

23:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

23:00 - 03:30 

 

 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Monday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Thursday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Friday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Saturday 

10:00 - 03:30 

Sunday 

10:00 - 03:30 

 

 

 

Non Standard Timings for Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Activities like 

Music/Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply of Alcohol: 

 

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 

Year's Day. 

 

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences. 

 

 

 

Page 108



The Opening Hours of the Premises 

 

Monday 

10:00 - 04:00 

 

Tuesday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Wednesday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Thursday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Friday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Saturday 

10:00 - 04:00 

Sunday 

10:00 - 04:00 

 

 

Non Standard Timings: 

 

  

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 

Year's Day. 

 

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences. 

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 

supplies: 

  

On and off the premises 

 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premise licence: 

Name:  Mr Zhongle Chen 

 

Address:   16 Barbican Road 

  York 

  YO10 5AA 

 

 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premise licence authorises the 

supply of alcohol: 

 

Mr Zhongle Chen 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

 

There shall be a "Challenge 21" policy in operation at the premises requiring any individual 

who appears to be under the age of 21 to produce identification to prove that they are over 

the age of 18, the sale of alcohol being refused where they are unable to do so. 

 

The following forms of identification are acceptable: photocard driving licence, valid passport, 

PASS accredited 'Proof of Age Card', any other form of identification previously agreed with 

representitives of North Yorkshire Police licensing Unit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Date:   28/09/2005 

The Director of Communities 25/06/2015 (Transfer and DPS Variation) 

& Neighbourhoods 

 

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552512 

Hazel Court Eco Depot Fax:     01904 551590 

James Street 

York Email:  licensing.unit@york.gov.uk  

Y010 3DS Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

Page 110

http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing


 

Director: Neil 
Ferris  Public Protection 

Economy and Place 
 
Eco Depot 
Hazel Court 
York 
YO10 3DS 
Tel:  01904 551550 
Fax: 01904 553239 

 
 HLS/2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Sir 
 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
REVOCATION OF PREMISES LICENCE 
REGENCY, 16 BARBICAN ROAD YORK 
 
I write in connection with the premises licence for the above address, that was revoked 
by the Licensing Authority on 8 June 2020 following the review of the licence.  As your 
appeal against the decision to revoke the premises licence was dismissed by the Court 
on 8 December 2020 the premises licence is now revoked. 
 
As the licence has been revoked all licensable activities must cease immediately at 
the premises. Should you be found to be providing licensable activities without the 
appropriate licence the authority will investigate and prosecute where appropriate. The 
penalty for operating without a licence carries an unlimited fine and/or up to six months 
imprisonment.  
 
For clarity licensable activity consists of the sale by retail of alcohol either on or off the 
premises (including home delivery), the provision of hot food and/or drink after 2300 
and before 0500, and the provision of regulated entertainment. 
 
Should you have any questions or require clarification on any points please do not 
hesitate to contact me.   
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Helen Sefton  
Senior Licensing Officer 

 
Copy to: North Yorkshire Police, Licensing Team 
 

Ask for: Helen Sefton 
Telephone: 01904 552422 
Email: licensing@york.gov.uk 
Our Ref:   CYC 09221 
  

10 December 2020 

Mr Zhong Le Chen 
16 Barbican Road  
York 
YO10 5AA 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Chair
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application for a Premises Licence by Mr Man Wei Leung  in respect of Haizhonglao Hot Pot & BBQ, 12 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP (CYC-067498)
	Annex 1 - Copy of Application
	Annex 1 - Operating schedule additional document
	Annex 1 - Plans
	Annex 2 - Regulated Entertainment
	Annex 3 - Cumulative Impact
	Annex 4 - Licensing policy annex
	Annex 5 - Police Representation
	Annex 6 - Map
	Annex 7 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 8 -  Legislation & Policy
	Cover - additional documents
	MG11 - 133
	210114 PC 1671 Statement LEUNG
	Statement from Glyn Jones
	Statement - 12 George Hudson St HLS
	HLS-1
	HLS-2


